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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPL YING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To: Board of Directors of Garfield Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and Sewage Works 
Association and 
Mr. Tim Keller, New Mexico State Auditor 

I have performed the agreed-upon procedures enumerated below with respect to accrual basis 
financial information and state law compliance for Tier 6 of the Audit Act - Section 12-6-3B(6) 
NMSA 1978 and Section 2.2.2.16 NMAC which were agreed to by the management of Garfield 
Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and Sewage Works Association (the "Association") and the 
New Mexico State Auditor, solely to assist you with respect to the accounting records of Garfield 
Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and Sewage Works Association for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2016. The management of Garfield Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and Sewage 
Works Association is responsible for maintaining the financial records and complying with state 
law. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation 
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Garfield Mutual 
Domestic Water Consumers and Sewage Works Association is the responsible party, and the 
subject matter is the responsibility of the Association. The sufficiency of these procedures is 
solely the responsibility of Garfield Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and Sewage Works 
Association. Consequently, I make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures 
described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other 
purpose. 
My procedures and findings are as follows: 
1. Procedure Performed: The Association has sixteen checking, savings and investment 
accounts. I selected six months (August 2015, October 2015, December 2015, February 2016, 
April 2016 and June 2016) for each of the 16 bank accounts for a total of 50% to verify that bank 
reconciliations are being performed in a timely manner and whether all bank and investment 
statements for the fiscal year are complete and on-hand. 

Findings: None of the bank reconciliations were performed in a timely manner. A majority 
(56 out of the 96) hank reconciliations tested were performed and completed during the month 
of August 2016. All bank and investment statements for the fiscal year were complete and on­
hand. See Findings No. 2016-001. 

2. Procedure Performed: I selected six months (August 2Cl15, October 2015, December 2015, 
February 2016, April 2016 and June 2016) for each of the sixteen bank accounts for a total of 
50% of the bank reconciliations to perform a random test of bank reconciliations for accuracy. I 
traced ending balances to the general ledger, supporting documentation and the quarterly 
financial reports submitted to DFA-Local Government Division. 

Findings: There were no exceptions for accuracy of the bank reconciliations and the ending 
balances agreed with supporting documentation and amounts in the general ledger accounting 
system. However, the amounts reported for cash in the financial reports submitted to DF A-Local 
Government Division did reveal differences due to any reconciling items that had not yet been 
perfonned in the bank reconciliations as discussed in Findings No. 2016-001 above. See 

Findings No. 2016-0~,, .tRJl tJ4h'"' n.u'"r. 
~ 
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... ... 

. . J..:Procedure Performed: I reviewed the supporting documentation provided by the financial 
. . :institutions to determine if the fmancial institution has prov:lded the 50% pledged collateral on all 
.· • · · ,.:fiJifiisured deposits as required by Section 6-10-17 NMSA 1978, NM Public Money Act, if 
· '. : :~~pplicable. The fourteen bank and investment accounts are in two separate banking institµtions 

.· · · · · :· . : · ~d two accpunts are held with New Mexico Finance Authority which hold the funds as reserve 
· tot guarantee~ debt repayment. · . . 

·.· . 

. · .... 

.: Fin~ings: The Agency has cash deposits (7 accounts) in Wells Fargo Bank with the total of 
;µI .accounts exceeding the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit of $250,000 each montb. ··. · 

.··· ·durjiig,the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The amount exceeding the FDIC limit varied fi'.om · · 
. month to .month with the smallest am.otmt being $13 ,206 ~d the highest amount being $78,498 . 
. :of~insured depesits which the institution has not provided 5:0% pledged collateral on the 

•• < • i uninsured amounts. The Agency has cash deposits (7 accounts) in White Sands Federal Credit 
.. :Unidn totaling $98,674 which is insured up to $250,000 bfthe National Credit Union 
·· A,dministration. See Findings No. 2016-003 · · 

)kProcedure Performed: I verified that the company performs a yearly inventory of Capital 
.. ·Assets as required by Section 12-6-10 NMSA 1978. 

<. .,Findings: No exceptions were found as a result of applying this procedure. 

· .. :5.: Procedure Performed: I verified that the requ~d debt payments were made during the year 
· .:and'.that the company was in compliance with any reserves required by debt agreements. 

· · · ·Findin~: No exceptions were found as a result of applying these procedures. 

· ~ · 6~ · Procedure Performed: I inquired about the nature and amount of revenue from sources by 
reviewing the budget, agreements, rate schedules and underlying documentation. I 

.·: .. performed an&:lytical review; tested actual revenue compared to budgeted revenue fur the 

. · :year for each tYJ>e of revenue. 
· Findings: No exceptions were found as a result of applying this procedure: 

.. :··· ... · : 

1. Pre>cedure Performed: Amounts are recorded (cash basis) to the revenue accounts on a 
... :tJaily basis.(based on receipt of payments) and annually adjusted for accrual of the final month 
. .. :;:~illing of the fiscal year end. The total revenue for fiscal year ended J uµe ~ 0, 2016 was 

.. :~$4~6;882 excluding any grant revenue. I tested all revenue for six-months (July 2015, September 
2015; December 2015, January 2016, March 2016 and May 2016 for a tot.al of $241,S 14 (52%) 

,)>frevenue to determine that the amount recordedfor revenue in the general ledger agrees to the 
· .· .iiUpporting documentation and the bank statement. 
· · .: Findin,gs: No exceptions were found as a result of applying this procedure . 

. :·~fr Proc~ure-Perfonned: I tested all revenue for six months (July 2015, September 2015, 
·December 2015, January 2016, March 2016 and May2016 for a tot.al of$241;514 (52%) to 

.. , · determine that the receipts of revenue were recorded to the proper classification, amount and 
.: . _p~iod in the general ledger that agrees with the same basis of accounting records that the 

· . : c.ompany uses . 
. . ..... ·.:· ·.Findings: . No exceptions were found as a result of applying this procedure. 
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··.· ..... , . 

· . 9.' . Proced.ures Perfonned: I selected and tested every cash disbursement in excess of $400 
:,·_~:·which resulted in $151A23 (53%) of total expenses $287,345 (excluding depreciation and 

.am.ortization) to determine that the amount recorded agreed to adequate supporting 
· · .•. :<h>cumentation and verified that the amount, payee, date and description agree to the vendor's 
.. ·invoice, purchase order, contract and cancelled check, as appropriate. 

· ·. · · : Findings: No exceptions were found as a result of applying this procedure. 

· 10:.P'roceclures Performed: I selected and tested every cash disbursement in excess of$400 
.... :.:,Wfiich resulted in $151,423 (53%) of the total expenses $287,345 (excluding depreciation and 

:·.'.::amortization) to determine that ~e amount was properly authorized. 
. . :· Findi~gs: No exceptions were found as a result of applying this procedure. 

. lL.:Procedµl'es Performed: I inquired if the bidding process (or request for proposal process, if 
.·. :_iq,.plicable ), purchase orders, contracts and agreements were processed in accordance with the 

. .. ' '. · ,New M~xico Procurement Code and State Purchasing Regulation . 

. ; _· ... 

. . . . . . . 
'• 

... · .. ... . 
·' •' 

· . . ·· .. 

. .... · : Findings: The Agency did not solicit bids, quotation or proposal for the Agreed Upon 
· · Procedure Tier 6 after receiving the notification· from the Office of the State Auditor that it 

.Sbould select an IPA to perform· the agreed-upon;ptoced:ures engagement. See Findings No. 
: .:'2016-004 . 

. · .. . l2;Procedures Performed: I verified that journal entries appeared reasonable im.d had. 
·. · supporting documentation. 

, ·· · · ·.··.Findings: No exceptions were found as a result of applying this procedure. 

13. Procedures Performed: I inquired if the company has procedures that require journal 
. . entries be reviewed and that they are being reviewed. 

Findings: No exceptions were found as a result of applying this procedure. 

· · .J4. ,Procedures Performed: I reviewed the minutes and correspondence to determine that the 
: ·:, ,original budget and subsequent budget adjustments were approved by the local public body's 

... · · · .. "::g0veming board and DFA-LGD; 
~ " : 

. . . Fb1dings: The original budget'was prepared and submitted to DFA-LGD on June 17, 
.•... 2.016 which was late and approved by DF A-LGD, however, once the Agency was notified that it 

_hadbeen approved, the local public body's governing board did not include the approved budget 
· >asp~ of the minutes. The Agency is not reviewing any budget to actual variances. See Findings 
.No. 2016-005. 

:: ·- .. < ·15. Procedures Performed: I verified if the total actual expenditures exceeded the final budget. 
I determined that actual expenditures did not exceed the final budget at the legal level of 

... bud,getaiy control. I have prepared a schedule of Budg~tary Comparison to Actual revenues aml 
·. ::, .:'exp~nditures (see pages 19 and 20) 

.. . .. ~.:-.:·,:Flndings: No exceptions were found as a result of applyjng this procedure: 
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16. Procedures Performed: I inquired into any and all state-funded capital outlay awards. 
Findings: _The Agency was awarded a Colonias Infrastructure Grant #2974-CIF on 
5/23/14 in the amount of $100,000 of which $84,225 was funded and expended during fiscal 
year 6/30/15. The balance of $15,774.93 was funded & expended.during fiscal year 6/30/16. 

The Agency was awarded a Colonias Infrastructure Grant #3179-CIF on 5/22/15 in the 
amount of $360,000 with a $40,000 loan. The $40,000 loan and $279,236 grant revenue 
were funded and expended during fiscal year 6/30/16. The balance ($80,764) of the grant 
was funded on 7 /29116. 

The Agency was awarded a Grant #3218-PG in the amount of $30,000 on 5/22/15 and 
$29,999 was funded and expended during fiscal year 6/30/16. The unexpended grant balance 
in the amount of $1 was returned to the general fund during fiscal year 6/30/16. 

The Agency was awarded a Colonias Infrastructure Project Loan/Grant #3350-CIF on 
3/18/16 in the amount of $1,126,567 with a $112,657 loan. Neither were funded during 
fiscal year 6/30/16 but the first loan payment was required on June 1, 2016, so the 
Agency set up a "due from NM Finance Authority" to recognize the awarded loan amount. 

17. Procedures Performed: I tested 100% of all capital outlay expenditures during the fiscal 
year to detennine amounts recorded as disbursed agree with supporting documentation. I 
verified that the amount, payee, date and description agree to the purchase order, contract, 
vendor's invoice and canceled check were properly recorded. I verified that the cash 
disbursements were properly authorized and approved in accordance with budget, legal 
requirement and established policies and procedures. I verified that the bid process (or 
request for proposal process, if applicable), purchase orders, contracts and agreements were 
processed in accordance with the NM Procurement Code and State Purchasing Regulations 
(Section 13-1-28 through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978 and 1.4.1 NMAC). I determined that the 
physical existence (by observation) of the capital asset based on expenditures to date. I 
verified that the· status reports were submitted to the state agency per tenns of agreement .and 
amounts in the status report agree. with the general ledger and other supporting 

documentation. I verified if any of the projects were funded in advance, that the award 
balance (and cash balance) appropriately reflect the percentage of completion based on the 
project schedule and expenditures to date. I verified that if the projects were complete that 
any unexpended balances were reverted per statute and agreement with the grantor. I verified 
whether cash received for the awards were accounted for in separate funds or separate bank 
accounts that are non-interest bearing (if so required by the capital outlay award agreement). 
I determined whether reimbursement requests were properly supported by costs incurred by 
the· recipient. I detennined whether the costs were paid by the local public body prior to the 
request for reimbursement. 

Findings: No exceptions were found in testing all capital outlay expenditures. 

-4-



·. ,.· .. .. 

' .·. · · · ·: · > ·. :is,, ,Proce.~u.res Performed: If information comes to the IPA's attention (regardless of 
.. ·.· ' · -~ materiality) indicating any fraud, illegal acts, noncompliance;·.or any internal-control 

.. · . : · · - :-;deficiencies, disclose in the report as required by Section 12-6-6 NMSA 1978. The finding8 
·:: :-it;!rist include the required content per Section 2.2.2.10(1)(3) (C) NMAC . 

. ·. .Fil1dings: No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedures described above 
:.·•(regardless of materiality) indicating any fraud, illegal acts, or any internal control deficiencies. 

•·. : .. · ·. : _ .. : .. ~ " .. twas not engaged to, and did not, conduct an examination,. the objective of which would be the 
.:-.>>: ;'. : ·: : .. / .. ~ : .. : ; . ~~r.ession of an opinion on Garfield Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and ~ewage Worb 
·:·:.->>:-' . :::::.··.' .... :·" ".: ::·~soeiation accounting records at June 30, 2016 Accordingly~ I do not express' such an opinioi). 

........ :" •·· ~. · · .·: :'_Had :J performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to· my attention that ' 
· .. ·· w,ould have been reported to you. 

·.-·· J .This report is .intended solely for the information and use of the Management of Garfield Mutual 
. DOmestic Water Consumers and Sewage Works Association, the Board of Directors, the NeW 

..... :·Me~co State Auditor, the Department of Finance and Administration- Local Government . 
. . . -_ DiVision, and the New Mexico Legislature, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by 

. . : , : · -. , . ·. anyone other than those specified parties. -

. ./ :Wanda M. Lucero, CPA 
. --Mesilla, NM 

·November. 11, 2016 

c.pA 



To The Board of Directors 
Garfield Mutual Domestic Water Consumers & Sewage Works Association 
Garfield, New Mexico 87936 

Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of Garfield Mutual 
Domestic Water Consumers & Sewage Works Association, which comprise the 
Statement of Net Position - Water System Fund -Proprietary Fund of Garfield Mutual 
Domestic Water Consumers & Sewage Works Association and the related Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - Water System Fund -
Proprietary Fund and the Statements of Cash Flows - Water System Fund- Proprietary 
Fund for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. I have performed compilation engagements in accordance with Statements on 
Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and 
Review Services Committee of the AICP A. I did not audit or review the accompanying 
financial statements nor was I required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy 
or completeness of the information provided by management. Accordingly, I do not 
express an opinion, conclusion, nor provide any assurance on these financial statements. 

The budgetary comparison information on Pages 19 - 20 is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. I have compiled the supplementary information from 
information that is the representation of management, without audit or review. 
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 
supplementary information. 

Mesilla, New Mexico 
November 11, 2016 
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.... · ... : ..... .. : ·.,,.. . GARFIELD MUTUAL DOMESTIC WATER.CONSUMERS AND 
SEWAGE WORKS AS$0ClATION .. 

· .... ·· ;.:, .. 

" •.; ... 

·.: .... •. _. 

STATEMENT OF NET POSmON 
WATER SYSTEM FUND , PROPRlEJARY FUND 

JUNE 30, 2016 

ASSETS 
. . .. ·:; ;. ·':·· . CURRENT ASSETS 

:~·· · ..... 
· '··. CASH & CASH-EQUIVALENTS 

"· · UNRESTRICTED 
. . . . . RESTRICTED 

TOTAL CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 
... .. , .. INVESTMENTS: 

. . ~ . . .. ':: .: ~·.:·: . ~ UNRESTRICTED 
.· .. ''." . RESTRICTED 
. . . . . . TOTAL INVESTMENTS 

···:/~ ,. :: · .. </:.~-:; · · TOTAL CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS & INVESTMENTS 
. . · . · '· ·ACCOUN15 RECEIVABLE 

•' .·· ·: .. : .. ·ouE FROM NMFA#33SO-CIF 
. . . ' • 

INVENTORY, SYSTEM MATERIAL 
PREPAID EXPENSES 

.. .-;°· ··- .. >: . TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 
: >:: · .. . ·. ·. :.'. CAPITAL ASSETS 

· ... : .. _.-'. .. _. :.;_..~ .. LAND 
.. ·· .... : . > ·; : . ·, .. '. .. ::~ <': .BUILDINGS 

.. : : : WATER SYSTEMS 

" ~ . .. . 

.. . _., .. ,... . »CONSTRUCTION INTEREST 
. .. . : ·:E~urp·~ENT 

: · ·: : ·.SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT-ENGINEERNG 
:· · .. ·<: :/,· .· FURNITURE AND.FIXTURES 
.. :: . . · . AUTOMOBILES 

. .:.- ;.··. 

..... ·:, ~ .... 
,. 
- · .· 

. ·. ·· .. : 

FENCE 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 

CAPITAL ASSETS- NET OF DEPREOATION 

· ......... : .. . • . .. . ·.·· TOTAL ASSETS 
·: .. ·. 

. .... . . 
··;: :: .. ·: tURRENTLIABIUTIES 

' · ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ... .... 

LIABIL.ITIES A~D NET ASSm 

.. ·· · . .. REFUND AND SECURITY KEV DEPOSITS 
ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE 

-. .. . " : .. :.-· ... ·: .: 

PAYROLL AND GROSS RECEIPTS TAXES PAYABLE 
CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM DEBT 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

. ·.:· .. ... 
. ·: .. ~·.: ::NON~CURIJENT LIABILITIES 

. .: . : .. ... _ .. 
-"; .. :-· _ ....... . . .. NON-CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM DEBT .. ... . . ·'. . 

..... ... :··· .· :.:- .... 
. , ... · _ ... :.': .::" . 

:::· :.: :.: -~ ·· .. 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
TOTAL LIABILITES 

: ..... _ . .,._ ·. '; · -.: _.:-::,::;>;·111-T.POSITION 
: .. ··" : · ,; · · ~:· ;. · ~ .:: _:- t.· . 'INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF RELATED DEBT 

. . RESTRICTED FOR: 

. ~ ·, 
... .. : ··: :" 

.•.. · .. :·.; DEBT SERVICE AND REPAIRS 
:.. ' : 

..... 
... ·· , .-:• · , 

.·.UNRESTRICTED 
TOTAL NET POSITION 

TOTAL LIABILmES & NET POSITION 

SEE ACCOUNTANT'S COMPILATION REPORT. 
- 8 -

$272,326 
13,396 

285,722 

98,675 
158,078 

. 256,753 
542,475 
. 45,843 
112,657 
50,264 

_ 18,921 
770,160 

84,207 
147,207 

S,478,134 
46,526 
76,150 

449,277 
11,335 

. 80,845 
17,158 

12,645,280) 
3,745,S59 

20,787 
(9,061) 
11,726 

$4,527,445 

$13,440 
6,694 
3,633 

10,213 
97,584 

131,564 

_916,887 
916,887 . 

1,048,451 

2,708,834 

171,474 
. 598,686 
3,478,994 

. $4,527,445 



. . . . . ; . ' . . . . ~ 

. · .... ' 

.. 

GARFIELD·MUlUAL DoMESTIC WATER CONSUMERS AND · ·· 
SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION . . ·· ... 

~ , .. · . .... . . . · .. :, ....... " . . ;.r· .. STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES iN ·FIJND NET JiOstTioN . 
. · . . : : ... ~ ..... ·.:·.;; ·:· ... ··:.~;.... WATER SYSTEM FUND · PR~eRlEIAAY.FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 . ·.····-· · ·· .·. · .. _,· .··. 
:· · . .. :. :···, 
... 

: f 

O!iEAATING .REV~NUES 
. WATER SYSTEM REVENUE 

·. PENALTY REVENUE 

. . . :· , . · .· .. ·.- WATER CONNECTION REVENUE 
. . ~:· · · :.< .MEMBERSHIP FEES REVENUE 

. . · ..:"·:·· .DELINQUENT RECONNECT CHARGE REVENUE 
... :: .·. -· .. ' ·;·· . ·:"- :.. . .TURN ON .CONNECT REVENUE & RELOCATING METERS 

.. · ·: · ·,.· .RETURN CHECK FEE REVENUE 
·:: . . • · . . · TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

·. :·.:·.· _;:. ... :;·::>: iQPERATl~ -~P~ES 
. . :. :· :· :· ' :· . ANNUALM'EETING 

. : ~> · : · ;·: · .. 

AMORTIZATION 
.AUTO fxPENSES 
BACKHOE REPAIR 

...... ~: ·- ... · BANK CHARGES 
·\· . . ~·· ..... . ·: ,·' · ... · . . . 

.·. 
. CASH (OVER) SHORT 
CHLORINE SOLUTION 

·:. . . ·.;_:- .. ··• .SOFTWARE SERVICE AGREEMENT 

.... 
..... ..... ·· 

· LEGAL AND ACCOUNTING 
. ' ~:·:· . :. LICENSES AND FEES 

.· · 

. .- ;_· 

. . 

... : ,•: . ~·.- .. : ... : . 

. LOAN ADMINISTRATIVE FEE 
-MISCELLANEOl:JS 
OFFICE 

. PAYROLL TAXES 
,PROPERTY TAXES 

." POSTAGE/~ND FREIGHT 
RENT· WAREHOUSE 8c EQUIPMENT 

• · ·· . REPAIRS AND MAl.NTENANCE 
·. ·. · .. : . . ~-._" ·' ·:. SYSTEM MATERIALS 

: '' : .. ':- .. · : ~· .. _;.· ... 
...... 

; :. . . ~ ; . 
. . • . , · 

. _:: .. · .. . SYSTEM REPAIRS 
TELEPHONE :::.'.: .... 

.. . WAGES . 
WATE.R TESTING 

.. UTILITIES 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

. OPERATING INCOME 
· : ·::·· .. · . ><.:·NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

·. :.:-::· . • INTEREST INCOME 

... ,·: · · ."_-:. ::<<' _INTEREST EXPENSE .. . .. 
. . . •. . · . . · .. : :::: · - · ... · . GRANT NMFA NO. 2974-0F 

:. ·:·: . ... GRANT.NM FA NO. 3179-CIF 

. '·-" >\<. ·.:.;.._. ·.· ·<. :· :GRANT·NMFA NO. 3218-PG 
·:-: .. :'·' . ,:. .. :·: · .. 

.......... 
.. :· 

··' .·. , • ···. ; 
. . · 
. . . -..... 

:: ... ... . TOTAL NO~OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
~ . : . . .. . 

·: ":: . . :; . . ; .. ·:_:· .'. .. ·· .. : · :. __ :/: .. 'CHANGES IN NEt POSITION 

.:·· ·: . . ··,. :TOTAL NET POSITION ·JULY 1 
. · ... ; . . .. :. '·: ;: ·foTAL NET POSITION· JUNE 30 

· .. · ·. ·: .· . . . 

; . ·:: . 

SEE ACCOUNTANrs COMPILATIPN REPORT . 
• 9-

$446,762 
11,832 

4,000 
1,251 
1,450 

' 1,462 
125 

466,882 

1,509 

533 
5,296 
2,070 

661 
0 

2,315 
4,630 

122,932 

913 
250 

'2,949 
"21,451 
11,226 

252 
2~376 

776 
·6,524 
i2,473" 
2,705 
5,782 
3,137 
2,729 

13,451 

606 
3,308 

100,299 
3,585 

. .28,649 
363,387 

.103,495 

2,265 
(47,422) 
15,775 

279,236 
29,999 

279i853 

383,348 ' 

3,095,646 
$3,478,994 



GARFIELD MUTUAL DOMESTIC WAT.ER CONSUMERS AND . .· . 

SEWAGEWORKSASSOCIATION . : . . 
STATEMENT.OF CASH FLOWS . 

WATER SYSTEM FUND ~ROP:RIEl'ARY FUND 
FOR THE YEAR.ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

'CASH FLOWS .FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
CASH RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS 
CASH PAID TO SUPPLIERS 
CASH PAID TO EMPLOYEES 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING.ACTIVITIES 

CASH ·FLOWS F~~M: CAPJTAL AND REl,.ATED;fll\IANCING .. AC1MJ:JES 
CAPITALGRANTs (#2974, #3179 AND·#32l:8) , 
.EXPENDITURES FOR ENGINEERING (#2974, #3179 AND. #3218) 
INTEREST AND LOAN ADMIN PAYMENTS ON CAPITAL DEeT 
ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL ASSETS 
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS ON CAPITAL DEBT . . 

. NMFALOAN PROCEEDS FOR LONG TERM CAPITAL DEBT 
NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL &.RELAT~D-FINANCIN~ ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
INTEREST EARNINGS 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
CASH AN.D CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR (INCLUDING 

$155,5884 REPORTED IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS) 

CASH AN!> CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR.(INCLUDING 
$171,474 REPORTED IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS) 

$472;605 
. (143,701)' 
{100,2~9) 

228,605 

325,010 
. (~65,052) 

. (50,146) 
(39,821) 
(88,504) 

4!),000· 
(178,513) 

.2,265 
2,265 

. 52;357 

490,118 

$542,475 

RECONCILIATIPN OF OPERATING INCOME T-0 NET CASH PROVJDED BY OPERATING AtTIVltlES 

.CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
OPERATING INCOME 
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME TO NET 

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
GRANT NO. 2974-CIF 
GRANT NO. 31?9-CIF 
GRANT NO. 3218-PG 
CAPITAL DEBT INTEREST AND LOAN ADMIN FEES 
INTEREST EARNED ON INVESTMENTS 

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 
CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: 
( INCREASE) DECREASE IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
( INCREASE) DECREASE IN INVENTORY SYSTEM MATERIAL 
(INCREASE) DECREASE IN PREPAID·EXP..ENSES 
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN DEPOSITS AND :SECURrrY KEY DEPOSITS 
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN PAYROLL & GRbSS RECEIPTS TAXES 

TOTAL ADJUSTMENJS 

NET CAS!i PROVIDEO BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

SEE ACCOUNTANrs COMPILATION REPORT. 

-10-

.· $383,348 

(15,775) 
.(279,236) 

(29,999) 
49,798 
(2,265) 

123,465 

5,723 
(4,934) 

(361) 
(2,00S) 

905 
(59) 

(154,743) 

$228,605 
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GARFIELD MUTUAL DOMESrtCWATER:CbNSUMERS AND 
SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION 

NOTESTOFINANGIALSTATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

. t>SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCO~ING.POLICIES: 
.•: _, .. .. 

~ : .. ~-- .· :' ·-

. · :·.-.:·· 
· · ·. (a) REPORTING ENTITY - Garfield Mutual Domestic .. Water Consumers and Sewage . 

·. Works Association was organized in March.,1968. The organization supplies water to . 

. ;·- .. -

: __ ,···.:· :·: · · 

~ .· .:·" .. 

.... -~ :· 

·.' 

approximately 900 consumers from the north edge of Hatch to Exit.59 vvhich is 114 mile..>:. 
south .of I-25 Caballo Lake Exit in Sierra Counfy .. The area.is known as the1Iatch · 
Valiey .. The organization is governed by a eight-member BoardC>f .Directors,. whose· 
members are elected to three year terms. 

·As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the· United States of Americi4 
These financial statements present the .Garfield Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and .. 
Sewage Works Association (the primary government) as a stand-alone goverru:µent. the 
. reporting entity for the organization includes all functions of govemtnent in which the ··. 
·Board of Directors exercise oversight r~sponsibility. Oversight responsil>ility includes,. ·.· 

. -:.··.:· 

· but is not limited to, financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, 
designation of management, significantability to influence operations and accountability 
for fiscal matters. No component units eXist in w~ich the·Organization has any oversight 

, • ,' ¥ 

' . 

. . ·._-: ._·. 

. ·:-· ... 

i . 

. ·, 

responsibilities, which would require inclusion in the Organization's fu;uincial . 
. statements in accordance with Governmental Accounting;Standards Bo&.rd..StatemeniNo .. / 
14. _i , .. 

The organization's financial statements ate prepared in accordance with. genera.Uy· 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB). Is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments. 
through its pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued• 

:._.:>-···' 
· through November 30, 1989 (when applicable), that do not conflict with or contradict 

GASB pronouncements. 

.. · ... 

.......... · 
.. ·. (bfWATER.SYSTEM FUND- PROPRIETARY FUNi>.FINANCIALSTATEMENTS­

The water system fund financial statements (ie., the statement of net assets. and the 
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets) report information on all 
activities of the primary government and its component units. 

: . ·-·., 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets demonstrates the 
degree to which the expenses are offsetby program revenues. Program revenues 

.,· .. 

... · .. 

: . ·· .. 
··. 

.. include: 1) Charges to customers or applicants who·purehase, use, or directly benefit 
. from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or activity and 2) grarits 
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 

. ·function or activity. Other items not properly included.among progl:~ revenues are··· 
reported instead as general revenues . 

- 11-
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GARFIELD MUTUAL DOMESTIC WATER CONSUMERS AND 
SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

• ' · . .. ··: . .': 
..... .. 

. . . . . :~ :- . 

. . - -·L-SUl\fMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING'.POLICIES:(Continued) · 

.· •. ·.·_. __ ·<·::·· /_.>_ :·::::(c)Measurem~nt focus, basis of accounting, and t1~ancial statement presentation .. . The 
· · ·· ' ·· -- ·:- ·_._.-:>:'Water System Fund- Proprietary Fund financial statements are reported using the economic 

· · · ··· · ·-~resources measurement focus and the accrual ha.Sis of accomitin& as fµ'e the proprietary fund 
.. , _ . -_ .. . :financial statements: Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 

. · .. ,''liability is incurred, regardless of the tiining of rel&ted cash flows. f'.mmts and similar items 
- . ·are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider h.ave 

-_been met 

>. · __ -_.· . ._._':_.:: · .. <:_:.:::~_Governmental fuiid financial statements are reported us~g _the current financial re~ources 
· · ,: . ·: ;: : -. . · -; measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 

... -.-. : ._ ~:- as soon as they are both measur-able and available . .. Revenues are considered to be av~ilable. 
-_ :-· ~ when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough ther~er to pay liabilities · 

· ·· -_:_ ·.:.: '~f the current period. For this purpose, the government considen revenues to be available if 
· .:· . . . .. . -they arc collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal peri.od. Expenditures generally . 
. . .. . :.-: .' -' . _,,are recorded when a liability is incurred, as un<ler accrual accounting. However, debt service · 
:-:;· '. ." ·:,; ~ _:.:' _: · >"--::~xpenditurcs, as well as expenditures related fo compensated absences and claims and judge-
. :;· '. :· · -· · ~ -- --- :· - · {, :ments, are recorded only when payment is due. · 

:". < : .' · .. -·: 
... 

•• ... _i.• 1. .Maj()r Pr.oprietary Funds - The Organi7.ation's Water System Fund-Proprietary Fund 
accounts for the operations of the water system which is funded by proceeds from 
operations of this facility, including user fees, meter fees, connection fees, late payment 
fees. The water system fund is the Organization's only enterprise fund . 

.. .. ·. ·-- '.The Organization utilizes the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting 
,.:.:~ _.·-. · -_·'~-~principles generally accepted in the United States of America in both the government-wiqe ~d'. 

-.. -_:_ ;· · · ..... · -: : .. · ':Jm~prletary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with· or.-_ 
• .-_ •· · i .· :· ·: ::·. :· · · ·: ,:.-· -~_:,~ontradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The Organization has · 
· . : ·' ·'· -_ -_ _ · ·::._: ;elected not to follow subsequent p_rivate-sector guidance issued after N oveniber 30, 1989. 

· . . · · ·-- - · -·>.:Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
·-· ;Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
· .. delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's priiicipal ongoing operations. The 
.-•:principal operating revenues of the Organization's enterprise fund is charges to customers for 

' :· ~ -_sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund include cost of sales and 
.. Services~ administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 

.. ·- . -. expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating rc1venues and expenses. 

·. --. · -': ... :.:_>':_.-/\'_)\Then both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, •t is the Otganization's 
_-: -:-: - . • · · · , . ".· · 

1 
"· -policy to use restricted first, and then unrest:rict~ resomces as they arc needed. 

··.- . . - 12 . 
: ~ . . ' .. .. 

·.·· ( ~ ~- . . ~. 
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GARFIBLD MUTUAL DOMESTIC WATER CONSUMERS AND 
SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION 
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.. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

'• :.· .. · .. ·. 
: · : 

·.~:x.;·sUMM:ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued) 
•' .. ... 

:·· :._ .. ~: ~.>:;:: ::'.:· ... /. -:;:·>-·<~;;.(d}CASB·AND CASH EQUIV ALETS AND .INVES'fMENTS - The Organimtioil ,s cash 
~ . : · .. : .... ·.· :: ~- .. :. ,.:::,Jin,dcash equivalents are considered to be cash-On hattd, demand deposits and.short-tenn . 
, ·· · · · · ·. · ~}investments with original maturities oftwelve months orless from the date o~acquisition. · . 

.. ·. : . . ·:: >,;(e)INVENTORIES - Inventories in the general fund .consi~ of expendable system materials . 
. \ -:. held for the Organization,s use and are carried at cost using the first-in, first.;.out method . 

. ·" .. ~ . . ~··. : ... . -
0

· : ·. > :.- .::;::_ .: ·:. :: . :'· ~ ',(f}-IiE~EIY ABLES AND PAY ABLES - The Water System Fund - Proprietary Fund 
. : >: ·-; ... · .:·:.; :.· .. : . ..':·>.receivables are due from customers within the Hatch Valley. The Organization's policy for 
· " · • ·. · ·:. .. ·" :: -· :-<6ollections is limited to collecting security and key deposits, the right to discontinue service 

. : ::.,:' .. "">· !><<attd .. place liens on property. 
,';· :··.. .. ~ .·. 

-. ·> · : ... -· -<: ~~i<Xg).RESTRICTED ASSETS - Certain net assets of the Organimtion are cl~sified as 

... : .. .. ·,,·. 
... ·' :: -/.<);·J:estricted assets on the Statement of Net Assets because their use is limited either by law· 
.,' · :·: -::·: .. ·~':-throµgh constitutional provisions or enabling legislation, or by restrictions Utjposed 

· .-. >externally by creditors, or laws or regulations of other governments. 

_: (h) PREP AID ITEMS - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future 
· ·' - accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items. The Organization .uses the 
: . - consumption method . 

. . _. ::"/'..:~; . :'. .'.:";_: ;:_::::-):::.~::·(i) CAPTIALASSETS-Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, 
"; _;:_ .';:::\ .... _/_:··:_. ::_··::.'_>'.::\:and infra$ucture assets (water system), are ~rted in the applicable busin~s-type 

· · · · · · · · ., ........ ~ ' .aCtivities in the water system fund- prQprietary fund financial statements . . Capital assets are 
.. defi11ed by the government as assets with an iilitial, individual east of more than $5,000·and 

.. ·::-:- an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded athistorical cost or · 
· .·· · .. . · .. estjmated historical cost if purchased or constructed. 

,:;·. ··: . 
. ·: : ~ . , ... 

.. 
. .. 

: . .. ··.· 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs .that do not add to the value of the asset or 

:~: materially ~xtend its useful life are not capitali7.ed. 

•:· '.: : ·>. J . · :;~ Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed:: • 
,. ':; : · .. ~:_ ... ,: ... :·;-.: / '_: .. · IDterest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type actiyiti6s is : 

·: .... : :,- •.. :: :··<··:::•· ··' ·:~ ·:, .. -._- illclu~cd-.as part of the capitalized value of assets constructed~ _ Therc was no interest 
-.. ~ . · -·: . · . · ·· ':· ..... < capitalized as part of the cost of capital assets under construction during the year ended 

:>",:··.,_: : ;.:· . .-, " June30,2016. 
--.· :" .. -13 -
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:GARFIELD MUTUAL DOMESTIC WAtmlCONSUMERS AND 
SEWAGE WORKS .ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINA;NCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

· · · :~·]'}~ .. ·SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued) 
: .· . .· ' 

.. ·~·.: . . : 

·. • · .. <:" : :. · ' . ·, :. ; :Depreciation of capital assets is computed and recorded by utilizing the straight-line ni~thcnL 
• . . "; :: · :. " , .. : ·:_.i ::Estimated useful lives of the various class.es of depreciable .capital assets llfe as follows:. 

":":! ·: ' . 
... . . . ·· ·- .. ·· ... . 

. ~ . :: ... :· ,:: ~ .. . ·. · ... . . . . . ~ 

. ···.:.-.-: ·._.·: : .... 
: -: .. _ , . 

Buildings 
Water System 

.·•'.. .~ ... : . 

. Machinery & F.quipment 
Automotiiles 

20- SOyears 
30-50 years 
5 - 10 years 
3 - S years 

10-20 years 
. , 

.. .. . , .::: .. Fence 
. . . 

.. - .. :· .. 

· ... ·.· · _: ::"· ,,,:··-~;°jj)LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - In the water system fund financial statements, long-­
.' · · · · .. · ~ ·: :':: :·::. ·:· \.<term debt and other long-term obligations are reported· as liabilities in the applicable 
:· .· .. . ' ~ · · .. :: :. "":<:\:Water system fund - proprietary fund statement of net assets. Debt and ref'mance issuance · 

. · . ,: · · . ·, ;: · ;Costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 
' I •' 

.. .·.· :. . . .. ; ... :.,(l) ·NET ASSETS- In the government-wide and water system fund.financial statettlents, 
· .. : :> ,i .. -,.,: . ·s:;::/: ·:.net ass,ets invested in capital assets net of related debt is equal to the depreciated carrying 

· ·: ·:·-.·:_.· ::: :· !'":' .. ::">:value of the Organization's capital assets less related debt. 
. .. . . ... ·~ . ".: : ·: . ';.' . . .. 

:'>" ·· ~.: ~;"·"~:"<<~,.:~: .. :·' ~(m) --JIUPGETS- Budgets are prepared for and adopted by the Board after public hearings for· . , -
· · -,:.:."::<·::.:. :'. ::< .:':,the gov:erillilental funds. The budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting. . ..... 

.... .: ·:: : ::·: : .: ... :;.,:: : ... ·~<Piinciples geJJ,erally accepted in the· United States of America. The legal level ofbudgetisfy ·: ,. · 
· .. "·. ' · ... .¢Oiltrol is at the fund level. All budgeted appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Formal 

' " 
7

, :budgetst.are adopted for the general fund. As a·result, deficits in the budget columns of the 
. . "· · .. '..- . "" · 8.((corqpanying financial statements may occur. The Organi7.lition legally .adopts budgets.lot 

· .: · ..... ::.: : ~:aU its funds on an annual basis. 

> . .. >. : ... :, ·-. ~;>2«-:":.CASHANDCASHEQUIVALENISANDINVESTMENTS: 
"' . . ~ _;· . . 

. . . . .~· : . . ·· 

?~ . · :-~: .: ~,: .. :.;::_:(a):D..epQsits and Investmenu - All deposits are held in :qualified public depositories and ate ... 
. . . · _ · ... "· • ·':::': .fududed in th_e accompanying balance sh~et and statement-0fnet assets as.(iash and cash · 

·::-· .. ·; _ ·>.'. : . . ·.~: :.!-\ -eq\i.ivalents. TheOrganimtion maintains cashand·securities at several local financial . 
:::.);·.·:::; . .. ·=··,: ... , ~ "</:~ . :fus:litu~ions. Accounts at each financial in~itution,ilre. ~ured. by the .Federal Deposit 

. / .:;:..' :\: .. ,/~::~ :;·:.(~~;,:~.Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At June 3{), 2016, the Organization .. had one 
, .... : : . ~ ··:·· <· :·: .. ... -":::";: :.:· Financi~ institution with uninsured deposits. See Findings No. 2016--003 . 

. . ··:";._.::: . . ·. : . . ~·:·: ·~: . .-::· ... : 
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GM.FJELD MUTIJAL DOMESTIC WATERCONSUMBR.$ AND 
SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION 

~-.-- ~.: .. • .,,· .- .: : 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTs 

JUNE30,2016 

.. . . · .·:.:) ::TheAssoci~on' s policy is to limit cash deposits to i.nsured and/or collatcral~d demand ·dcP,osit · .: .... . : . . .. , · .:-' ;<. ·;·:·::~Ol.µlts, ,.certtfl~ates of deposit and money mar.ke.t.funds: All .bank ~al.11nces, ¢XCept one bank·: ... · .. · . 
·· ;·-'>-::'. ·::--::: . ··:·.· - :~ . . :.(Wells ·Fargo) were insured as required by Federal Deposit.Insurance Corporation .and National :.. · · 

;· .. >>:·>:-· ~> . · · .. :;. : :~Ctedit Union Administration. The carrying amount of the Association's d~osits with financial 
.. · · :·; ... ... ·: .:· .llisti.tutioQ.s andNMFA at June 30, 2016 was $542,475.29 and the balance per the banks w8S 

·· .· · · .. . : $55~,260.84 and is shown as follows: · 
: " ;· . 

. · , ::.·'_..: :. · .:~hAccounts Balance per 
Depository 

Reconciling'Items 
Outstanding Transit 
Checks Deposits· 

.. . -: ~------ ·------- ·----
· · W~lls Fargo Bank 

,White Sands Federal CU 
·· · ,NMF A - Bank of NY Mellon 

NMFA 

$294,508.50 
98,674.27 
125,509.01 
32,569.06 

($9,034.42) $ 47.87 

Balance per 
Financial 
Statem_ents 

$285,521.95 
98,674.27 

125,509.01 
32,569.06 

$551,260.84 ($9,034.42) $ 47.87 $542,274.29 
Petty Cash 

. ·Financial Statements: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

; Restricted cash and Investments 
. Total. Cash 

.. concentration of Credit Risk 

201.00 

$542.475.29 

$371,001 
171.474 

$542.475 

.. Wells Fargo Bank -.$44,509 ($294,509 bank statement balance is covered by $250,000 FDIC 
maximum federal insurance and $44,509 is not covered). See Schedule of Findings No 2016-003. 

White Sands Federal CU - NONE ($98,674.27 including Certificates of Deposit totaling 
· $91,950.74 are covered by $250,000 FDIC maximum federal insurance). 

NMFA - Bank ofNY Mellon and NMFA-NONE ($125,509.01 and $32,569.06 are held as 
.reserve funds guaranteed for debt repayment). 

3. RECEIVABLES: 
·,Receivables at June 30, 2016 consisted of 45,843 gross billings to customers for water 

.-consumption through June 30, 2016. 
- 15-
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GA.RFIBLD MUTUAL DOMESTIC WATER CONSUMERS AND 

SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION 

.... ~ .. : . . . . . · . . ~ . 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
· .····:··: •.·· .. 
·<·.-":\: ·:. 

' .. .. . ·· · .. 
' ' .. ;. : .. ~ 

.. . 

. . ··: .4.-:CAfITAL ASSETS: 
.: ... :. · · ..... ,._. .. ,>.'-: Balance Increase Decrease Balance 

" : :>..:..: ... :.:,.:"> . . 7/1115 
·';;::·'."' ". > ·:" :_ <,:::~ <:JJ~l~~type Activities: 
: ·:·.· ·:'<":. '.: < >·:~ . ..c~P,1fu,lAssets not being depreciated: 

6/30/16 

.. . . : . . -~ </,' Lartd . $ 84,207 $ $ $ 84,207 
... : ::· · /~pital Assets being depreciated: 
.. .. ..·. ·.: ...• :::.:;Buildings 147,207 

.:.'.·_> '.:.. ">.Water System 5,524,660 
, .. ~.- . . · · --_ "Water System Impr 84,225 

'Equipment 71,950 ... ... :: : . . ;;_· -

... ::·· ··.'· .... · .. ~Utniture & Fixtures 9,569 
· ·.c·.. . • . · .. . :· · . · .· ~· ;: .. ]\utOmobilcs 46,990 

,/ ·.· ... · ":·:· : :Fence 17.158 
. . . " . . -: ."': 5,985,966 

· · : : . · ·· . · . Accumulated Depreciation (2.522.J 48} 

365,052 
4,200 
1,766 

33,855 

147,207 
5,524,660 

449,277 
76,150 
· 11,335 
·80,845 
17.158 

6,390,839 
(2.645.280) 

.... ... .. .. ·:Capital Assets; net $3.463.618 

404,873 
(122,932) 

$ 281,941 $ • 0 - $3.745.559 
. :· ~-, ·~· . ·.. . 

.. · ....... .. · 

·· .. , ,.: .. ::->: . ~- :s::;:LONG-TERM DEBT: 
· :· -: .. :::; ton:g .. term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows: 

Balance Additions Reductions Balance 
7/1/15 6/30/16 

.. ··:· ·.· -. 
... ··. 

. . ..;l)fi.Sirtess-:type activities: 
·::'~ .. · ..... " -· <NMFA $950,318 
<;:.c.::. <:~ ::~ ;:: ;_.'··:·:'~;~A 3179 0 
. .. ... '.· .. · · ·· "" .NMFA3350 0 

···· · " ··;>tdtiil $250.318 

- .... :. ,' 

'•- . . 
.: - .· ........ i .. . · 

. ·, , • 

·.· ,• 

.· .· 
. . - . 

··· . . 

! . : •. • . . ...... ··_. :·. ·. •,: . 
· . . . 

. . ~- .... r ·: . . . :_:· .. .'_. ~ . . .. 

. .. .' .. ·.' . ; . . . 

.. · -. . i.· .: 
.··. 

·:·· . 
..... _ .. ' ' 

$ 0 
40,000 

112.657 
$ 152.657 

$85,315 
2,000 
1.189 

$ 88.504 

$ 865,003 
38,000 

1,11.468 
$ 1.014.471 

Due in 
one yr 

$89,717 
2,00~ 

" 5.867 
$97;584 
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GARFIELD MUTUAL DOMESTIC WATER CONSUMERs AND 
SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

•• • ,1 :.: ••• . /the Organization at June 30, 2016 had the following terms.on.long-term debt:· 

· ·· · .. · .. . · · · - · . . Note-· Bond payable NM Finance Authority, payable semi-annually 
. · · ' .·· ::iiiMay and November of each year based on a restructuring 
· .. . · .. :CDSS aggregatedebt service schedule. The reserve is funded 

· · ·• :·. :· . . µionthly according to a monthly payment schedule. Maturity 
· ·. is~April 2024~ Bond Portion Coupon varies annually. 

;colonias Infrastructure Project Loan/Grant No. 3179-CIF awarded 
= . · .. _' .$4.60,000 loan/grant which included a 10% loan agreement with 

... . · .. . ·. ·NM.Fin.ance Authority in the amount of $40,000 .on May 22, 2015 . 
. ... : .::this i~ a non.;; interest bearing loan to the Association. The loan portion 
· :·· .... <".·is:payable in annual payments of $2,000 beginning Jtiile 1,°2016 and 

.:·.-.··" 

.... ~ •' ,.. ..· ' ; - . ~' . .. ·:::: :drie.on June· I of each year for nineteen years thus maturing 6/1/2035. 
· : ; ~ 'fJt~se funds were used for field survey, mapping, preliminary design . 

· · •: :3tl.d geoteohnical report. This note is collateralized by pled,ged revenues. 

. . -Colonias Infrastructure Project Loan/Grant No 3350-CIF awarded 
.. . · · · •' · ·'i-~126,567 loan/grant which included a 10% loan agreementwith 

,··- :: ~Finance Authority in the amount of $112,657 on March 18, 2016. 
·... . . . · '(The Association is required to match $112,657 for Phase I and II for 
:·._ .:.;: ".: .. ·· : .... JJ¢~ign and construction of waterline improvements. The loan is a 

, . ·. . . · : ' · ·· .. · .. · : . · ~n~n interest beating loan to the Association and is payable annually 
· <. : ·. ' · : __ : ... :· .. >.:JfrtJie amount of $5,867 beginning on June 1, 2016.and continuing for 

· · · · , :=·Nµt~en years, thus maturing on 6/1135. The fu:st payment which was 
....... dueJune 1, 2016 was prorated due to funding date and was reduced 

)o $1, 189. This note is collateralized by pledged revenues. 

. : ~··, 

.··.· 
.•. 

::• 

$ 865,003 

38,000 

111.468 
$ 1.014.471 

· · ·· ··· ·: .: > .. The aggregate maturities.of outstanding long-term debt during the next five years are as follows: · •. 
.. . ... ::,.20.11-$97,584;2018 - $102~257; 2019--$107,213; 2020 -.$112,460; 2021 - $118,001. 

.· .· .. · '• · .. - . 

.. . · .. 
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. GARFIELD MUTUAL DOMESTIC WATEJtGONSUMERS AND 
SEWAGE WORKS ASSOC1A110N 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

.- · .. .. . 

· ;. · .: · · ,;> . . '· .tL.P~GETS: 
. . · . , · -... · · O.ttjiield Mutual Domestic Water Consumers .and. Sewage· Works Association' S· 8llnual bud~ .a. .. • 

.. ::· · .• ;·.: .. '· ·:, )'egpii'ement ofthe·organization•s bylaws, serves as a guide to estimate iµid coordinate 
.· ••- .· · ·:: ._:: :.'·: . .> iiiltiQip~ted .revenues and expenditures. · 

... ·.:, /:·~ .. ~~ ... ~·.:> : ·.... . ' 

.. ~-~'. .. < >~ :::". : · :: ;:~ .. 1iS]fflsEQJJENT EVENTS: 

..· .:·· 

:-_ . · : .. :;' :.'.S.lj.bsequent events are events or transactions that occurred after the balance :sheet date but .before 
~:-: ·: · ,": .- : -... ',. ·:')h~:financial statements are issued or available to be issued. The Association recognizes in the . 
"-_: ~::< : ~ '. : "· . :.-:-~cial statements the effects of all subsequent events that provide additiot;ial evidence aboul '. . . .. . : . 
- . · · · · .·. ·: •.::. ·'<°:j;~nditions that existed at the balance sheet date, including_estimates inherent in·the process of ~·.· . -· ... ·····•··. · · ·· 
· :· ··· . · ·: :':.: .:::.-... ~;:j:S~i(f~g financial statements. The financial statements do. not recognize subsequent events tluii. _. i. . .· · · · · 
· · · .· · .- ·· · ·>·'.: :·):1>iovide evidence about conditions that did not exist .at the ·balance sheet date. Subsequent events 

-·· · .· .. · ·.<,·:·~¢,re 13Valuated through November 11, 2016, which is the date the financial sta~ments were 
· · • · ... '..::, '.;'::.:~table to be issued. As of November 11, 2016, there were·no subsequent events to report. 

· . . .· . . .. · , . .. ' 

. ; : .::-:·:·:.":: .... : .:··:s:,J:NcoME TAXES: 
;. :·. (. . :•: ... ·: .. The:company is an organization that is exempt from Federal Income Taxes under 50l(c)(12) and · 
·: · ·: >>..·: ;·;,file~federal Form 990 yearly. The federal tax returns of the company for 2013, 2014, 2015 and 
· · _. ·. > > '.·<.': · :_.)~Pl. 6 8re subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they. were filed. 

:· .. " ~ .,: .. 9>DUE FROM. NMFA #33S~IF: 
·; · .. . 

·. :·· .. >:1Ji~-Association was. awarded a Colonias Infrastrµcture Board Project No 3350-CIF: Water 
: ·. · · _<:·,.:-Infrastructure, Design and construction of Phase 1-11 for a new water source, storage capacity, 
·. ·:: :· .:,:~.:.~terline irnprovements and installation ofSCADA on March 18, 2016 for $1,126,267 
··:"· .. : .. ·~:_.::_:.::.~t/Loan. The grant is 90% ($1,013,910) and.the loan is 10% (112,657) with the Agency 

· -.:. ~ : . : "' .. >~.~tiired to match the loan amount. The loan is anon·interest bearing account with annual 
· · :;· .: .. >· .payments beginning June 1, 2016. At June 30, 2016 none o:fthe awarded money had been 
· ;: :" · · ::. ~J.u#~ed to the Agency but the first payment was prorated and due· June 1 ~ 2016 in the amount of · 

. · · .: · .... · :.\:.$hl89 so the Agency set up a "due from NM Finance Authority" to recognize the awar.ded loan 
· : .: .. _.- :,: · m)::totint. The 1.oan is presented on the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2016 with $5,867 

. ~• . · · ' , _..:::. : An~ljided in current portion oflong-term debi and 105,601 included in the non-current portion of 
. : : ·)c:;ng.:.term debt. The amount due from NMF A ,for nonfunded loan is shown as a. current asset in 
· --::: .. ·. ;-ih~Statement of Net Position. 
·.~7". · :·; • ··> . 

. . . , ... . . .. · .. . 
#.~·= ..... ...... ~--· 

. ... ;' : ·"'. . . . .• : • : ··i 

........ . \'.'.;<"' .. :<::: .. >· · ... 
. : .. "', :.: . ~-- ~ ·. ;. . . .. ··. :',· ... 
. ».: .· .... 

. . · ·: .. ... . · :·:_ ..... .. · .. : 
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GARFIEW'DOMESTIC WATER CONSUNll;RSAND. .Sley!l',AGI: JIORKS AtiSQ.CIATION 

euDGETAAY ~QMP.ARISOH·S~~lE 
WATER SYSTEM.FUNo·-..PROPRlltrARYt=tJND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
Aalull Vutum 

Orlglnll l'ln.t (lulft"8iy '°"" Budg9t Budpt 8Ulll Ulldv 

~UE: 
40CIDD ·~Ip FM R8venue $20 $20 $1,251 (11,231) 

40tDO • ...._ltJAtven111 11,0DD 11,000 11,832 (1132) 

40tl0 • Dlllnl!llllll R8cann•d CllU;• 1,750 1,750 1,450 300 

4DOD • 1Wn oll Cllmge Re\len111 400 400 5S2 (152) 

404llO • W.W Connection Revenue 15.000 15,000 <4,000 11,000 

40liOD . W...~ ~u• 4C0,827 '4<40,827 446,762 (5,1135) 

41000 • MS.C. Income - 450 ~ 910 ('480) 

41500 • R8llsMd checll fee 100 100 1~ (2t) 

41GOO.~ohuge 3,500 3,500 0 3,500 
TClllll....,._ 47U47 <47S,047 48&,A2 S,1M 

SEE INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S COMPILATION REfORT. 
SEE INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES REPORT. 
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GARFIELD·OO!VIESTIC WATER CONSUMl:~S,AND·s~Aot: WORKS AS~QtitA.MON 
. BUDGl;TARY cot.W.AR~.t>N $.~EQU~ . . . . 

WATER SYSTEM· FUND ~ PROPRIETARY i=UND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

ActUll V'Ulln• 

Orlglnal Final IBudgtllly IOVWI 
Budg9t lludgn Bull! Under 

EXPBisEs: 
tDlllD • AnulltlrillOn Expen• 533 533 533 0 

ID700 • Annlll.l I REGULAR Meeting Exp 800 800 MOS (709) 

l1DGO •Aldo Expln ... 9,500 9,500 5,2811 4,204 

lt2111 • BACIOtOE REPAIR 3,093 3,093 2,070 1,1123 

1211110 ·.lludl. Cflllp• 821 1121 681 (.a) 

mo .. t.h °"'and Short (7) (7) 0 (7) 

13180 • Qilorilllllolutlon 2,458 2,"58 2,315 143 

ema · Sollw919 llrv. Aa'""' 5,000 5,000 4,630 370 

-• • Depi9elll!On Expenee 109"'28 109,428 122,932 (13,504) 

MIDI! • DUN •11111 l11b1~rtptlon1 Exp - - 81S (14) 

"71111 • IE*lc:atllln 420 420 250 170 

IUllO • l!!ngl...ing l'ff 2,713 2,71!1 0 2.713 

IAGO•F..illlpiilee 9,001 8,001 :Z,948 S.052 
111110. 1'!1119lltapMll• 0 Q 58 (511) 

170GD • Ina_.,. EllpeMe 24,879 24,879 2M51 3,G8 

·110GO, i....ildrr end CINnln11 1,500 1,500 1.712 (212) 

UfDO.CICICl!a 450 450 0 450 

1111111 • IAlJll-Accountlng FM• 10,3711 10,S79 11,227 (&48) 

llllH ·~and F ... Ellpene1 1,072 1,072 252 1120 

19180 • Loiln Admln. Fee 2,340 2,340 2,371! (36) 

70DOO • llal......_ Expenaa 5,000 5,000 750 4,250 

70IDD. ·--Enl8ltlllnment Expenee 200 200 334 (134) 

7GIOD ..... ..uan.o ... 214 214 442 (228) 

7ll700 . -Canbvl end Wiid IOlllr 0 0 204 {2&1) 

11000 •ml• l!!lpln11 4,194 4,194 e,524 (2.~0) 

72800 • ~I Flea Tan• 5,993 5,893 8,218 (228) 

72810 • ...,.....I l!:lplnaN 0 D 0 0 

moo•...,...,.. llldlcerw Tu 1,401 1,401 1,464 (83) 

7DOO • ParfDll 'Wollt Comp Tu 89 09 llO (21) 

7DIO • Payral IUTA Tu 4,5311 4,538 4,571 (33) 

7MGO • l'ayrall Fiiia TU 133 133 139 (6) 

n.MD • Pioti-tyTu.a 2,500 2,500 2,705 (205) 

n&llD • Poldql Expen11 5,682 5,682 5,724 (42) 

74GllD•Rent-WAREHOUSE 3,000 3,000 3,000 0 
74100. Alllt--dlln.tEqulpment 0 0 1S7 (137) 

741GO • Rilplh ElqlenH 1,096 1,095 0 1,085 

711111G • tralmn llit.rtals 25,251 25,251 13,451 11,800 

7mlCI • .,_,.. Rlpelr 33,282 33,282 607 32,875 

7IOllO • T~ l!xp • lnt.ITlll 3,1120 3,820 3,308 512 

771H·~~"'· 119,llliD N,8.50 100,288 (S,1149) 

7711D • Wlllllr Mng 3,381 3,381 ues (204) 

7IOOI • 1111 ... • lllctllc 31,1114 31,1114 28,288 2,8119 

mH • Ullllllii-l!'NM llU 3811. - 314 45 

Total O...,.ttng Elplns11 412,075 412,075 383,387 411,818 . 

Opetallngl-(loae) eo.en 80,972 103,495 (42,523) 

~11~ue(Exp•n-): 

- .111111191t Income 1,302 1,302 2,265 11113 

171H. l ..... Expln11 (47,074) 147,074) (47,422) (348) 

4200G • NIFA Gimlt Rmlnue 325,010 325,010 

C.,.lal Ouller • Gnlnl upended {325,010) (325,010) 

C.,.lal OUllay-S.O.n ..P.nded (40,0G) (40,042) 

~orc.,111 Alleta (W,821) (39,121) 

Cllllngu lnWrnnl AMiii end Ueblllll .. 7,129 7,129 

NM c-....111 Dell! 81,853 15,1153 

Total rum-oitendlnll nlVMUUlupen-) (45,772) !45,772) 151,1'8) (5,188) 

NltClllnl8 15,21XJ 15,:ZOO 52,357 (!!7.•l 

Cull, ... ""*lo Of Y9U 480, 118 480.118 490,118 

c..11, • ot119mr $505,318 $505,318 $542,US 

SEE INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANrs COMPILATION REPORT. 
SEE INDEPENDENT f.CCOUNTANT'S AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES REPORT. 
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~· Appr0j>riaOons 
Pfutect Title 

.NMFA CIF ~rant (Water. Plan) . 
NMFA CIF Grant (Environmental Report) 
. ' NMFA CIF Grant (Design) 
NMFA CIF (Phase I & 11 Design & Construction 

Date Prolect# Awaid 

7/1../2014 2974-CIF $100,000 
5/22/2015 3218-PG 30,000 

7/1/2015 3179-tiF 36CJ,oo0 
3/18/2016 3350-CIF 1,013,910 

$1,503,910 

,_·. 

} '''.:' , .Y.: > .. ':' ; . '.. 
· .. : ' .. ·.· . ... 

AniOunt ·Amount ~ ~nt 
Received &pend8d Recamld expend9d 

jtrtorxRr1 eriorvears . cunentv• curtentYeer 

$84,i.25 $84,225 $15,175 $15,775 
0 29,999 29,999 
0 279,236 279,236 
0 0 0 

$84,225 $84,225 $325,010 $325,010 

T~ 
Aniourit · 
«•ce!Wc! 

$f00,o00 
29,999 

279,236 

0 

$409,235 

Total · 
.. AmOUnt 
IEM!nded 

$100,000 
29,999 

279,236 

0 

$409,235 

• returned to main fund 8/14/15 

-:ii-

~·='.:· .:.· < :·.: 
... 

. . "': '. : . ·.· .. . : '· 

. : :Y <··. \. 

Balaf'ie9 

~ 

$0 
1 • 

80,764 
1,013,910 

$1,094,675 

. , : 
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SCHEPULE OF FINDINGS AN.P.:RES~NSES 
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2016 

Type of 
Fwidinii * Status .. 

· ·· ::·: · :·-/:<:1.¢.ijr,~qt.y~ar: ·fi~djngs: 
, ; · .· ·- ·.' :. ;_'f ·:' J,J:~k:ltcondliatiOns performed in timley manner. 

.- ::°,::: : · ·;,}.t~.rts ~ubmi~ed~DFA-LGD . 
-.: · ... .-,:.~'. :· ·;:.¢ted~tJfuk;. additional 500/o pledged collat.eral 

.· •. . .. :< J",:.:::J.)1)ddhfg Process aecording to NM Procurement 
· . . _ ~,-.~~:·'.:/:\:~c&Je and S~te ;Purchasing Regulation 

... ·.: : :()J1¥Pi'~val of]3ildget 

D 
l) 

.D 

D 
D 

.. . ' . . . . . .... . . 

·· ··: · .. ·. · :~ _ · .::"· .: · ...... <·~;ijpryear .fincJings: None 

.. . ·' ..... ·· 

i> /;- ·.---.. ~:r:: for Fi!ldings 
~-, ·, :.: ... :.--B::ntegal Ac1(s) 

· · _: ·. __ : .. :C'..IntetnaI Control Deficiency 
.-.: . -.· -:·o·'·.v;..1.· ... . . • . 
·, .: .:,.-:··::·' ,>:::i:,on,comphance 
.· '_:;·-': .... .: . ... .. -· ··:. . . . 

.·. :: .. .. ·.· .. ·_:: 

· ...... :, .. :· . : 

.. ~H--:&(J,··rr· · 
.·.:: ·· ... · .. · ..... · ... · . 

. ~ .. -~ ~"·· . . ; ' ·:· .· .. 
.. :.:_:-.; .:/.: :· . ::.:- ~~. : ··~·. 

. . . . . . ,. . ~ .. ~: .: .. ·: ........ 
. -·: :" ~,· · .. . .. ~ . .-· : _-;. : ..... .' .. · . -22-

. ~· ... . ~ ... 
. .... •.' . 

( . .. .. 

Findings 
·. · .NUII1ber 

2016-001 
2016 .. 002 
2016-003 

-.2016-004 .. 
2016-005 
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. ·:" . . ; . -. . 
·. :·· . . .GARFIBLD MUTUAL DOMESTIC WATERCONSUMERS AND 

.. SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION . 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS.AND RESPONSES 

. - FOR YEAR ENDED JUNEJO, 2016 · 
.. ·· . -. ,_: :_:_ , ~~.l&m;2016-00l .. Bankreconciliations performed in a tirn.ety_,manner 

.• ~ •.• - .••.. _:-.. - :. • : :; , - ; ;:-r . -. . .. - _. . , , , ~ - -. ·• -. . - . - . ·' :· .' . :· ·: ' ." •. ·' ,··• . .. • . - - . 

... . · ; · · · - ,~'.Criteria 

· ' c::S~¢tlon 2.2.2.10.D NMAC states that the FfuancialStatements and notes to the ·financial . . . . ... 
· ·. · .\/: ,_~~tem.ents shall be prepared in accordance with accounting principles. generally accepted iri. ·the.··~-:· -· 
. : ~.-.:> i:;.Jl4ite.d States of America. Section 6-10-2 NMSA1978 requires that cash :records .be rilaint~ed :::) .: · 
· · ·; :'.lij#ngall items ofreceipts and disbursements of public money. The cash record mµstalso be 

·. '":-:" ... ·-~btlanced dii.ily to show the balance of public money on hand at.the close of.each busfuess day .. 
:··· -- --. ·. · ; ~·' • .. ·: _·. ,. . . . ,,.. . 

· · · ~ ··Condition 
,:·::_ ; -:Ba,nk'.reconciliations are not being performed monthly or .in a timely manner. The Agency has··· · · · · 
· · . · s_~e1),checking accounts, one savings account; one money market account, five certificates of 

: .... :J_:" ~-i\¢posits and two accounts hel<l with NM Finance Authority (held as reserve accounts for .. -
. : · · < . '..~teed debt repayment). All cash accounts are maintained usfug QuickBooks Accounting : ·• 

.. -. · >_ :software and the bank reconciliations are perfor:QJ.ed usfug_the program withfu. Quick Bodks.1,Jie'. · 
. / _ :b~:accountswere reconciled and all statements were complete and on han.d,for eachmoµthfot 
-. <: :~~al year ended June 30, 2016 but the majority of the reconciliations were performed during 
· · . . -... the.mo~th of August 2016. 

· · -· · · : .- .·Cause 
. . ' .. · ·. < ):iie·hffice Mi:µiager performed a majority of the bank account reconciliations after the· end of· 
... • --. . . .. :,theJiscal year during the month of August 2016 after having a difficult period.beginning in 

, . · .=.:< ·. -: ·: · :l}¢cember 201 S and continuing with personal issues concerning illness and eventual death of her 
, ~· ·· ... · · - /h.µ$bartd in May 2016. The Office Manager did however, maintain a daily cash balance update .. · 
· ·· ....•. · · .. : · :· :• · :.-: .: : Which was reported to the governing board. 

. ·· . . +".. . 

.. :._ . ·· . . ·· .. 

.. _ .. , :~(e~t 
·: ·. · · ..... · · .:nil:tfieldMutual Domestic Water Consumers and·. Sewage Works Association has not complied 

·.· ... ::)y~th :Section2.2.2.l0.D NMAC and Section 6-10-2 NMSA; 1978 bynot·maintaining _adequate 
.. ·:. : .. ; .. ctfutrols over cash or facilitating prompt and accurate rep.Orting. Bank and cash.:reconciliations .. 
. : ... ~-. · .. ·~ --~9-Uld be perfonned monthly to compare baDk balances.to balances in the .general ledger cash .. 

... , · .. ... #,.6~~ts to-ensure accuracy and accountability for all cash transactions. 

· '• :aecommendation 
:ItOi"~ tecommended that Garfield Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and Sewage Works 

.... \ . : :~'sociation establish a policy that requires monthly bank reconciliations on all bank accountS ·.. . . . 
· · 0: >· .aji._dthat they be performed within a reasonable time after receiving the bank statements from-the _ • 

. · .i·: J'biajJciaJ institutions. Accurate records will keep the Agen~y·s Governing Board.more fuformed; . .· . 
; .. · ... -· ·.:Md allow them to make better financial decisions; 
. . ·. ·-~$it~fy Respe>n~e . 

,:~::' ·· '. '·tiju:i.Ageney will actively establish a policy that requires that the monthly bank reconciliatic;>Ds-be· ... 
· . . · :. ·_p,-¢rl"otmed within two weeks of receiving the bank statements.from.the financial institutions· and 
: . : · ;. ·:.: ~tiiatthey be filed in a logical sequence. The Agency. will. begin verifying that reconciliations .ate , _ .. · 

.. · · ·, · ·. ·. :· /6emg performed timley at the monthly board -meeting beginning January 2017 . 
. . , -. . 
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GARFIELD MUTUAL DOMESTIC WATER CONSUMERS AND 
SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS ANDJIBSPONSES 
FOR YEARENDEDRJNE30;l016 

. .. - .. 

. .~/:'.iteni.20l6i:002 .•Reports Submitted to DFA-.LGD 
. ·':-: ... :·:~ .,-- ::·: ; ;' .. ' .. ... . . . . 

. ·. :··-· : 

. .. . • · ,. '::" Criteria · · 
. ::·: : . · . S~ctirin: 6-6-2(F) NMSA, 1978 requires each local public body to submit periodic financial . 

·. · :'. . - ·/·\.•:·,-~ports, .at least.quarterly, to the DFA-LGD. Section 6-6-3 NMSA, 1978 compilation .statestluit 
. ::.·_ .·:· . ;: ·.· ... )V-'1'}' local.public body shall make all reports as may be.required bythe Department ofF~e . . : 

·>.< .. _..·: ~-::.= .··. ::: <··.:: .. ,-9 Administration - Local Government Division (DFA-LGD) and .. conform to..the rules and -· 
· ·~<~::<•:>>:::{:.·.:·.,.·:·<)J~~l8tions adopted by the DFA-LGD . 

. · . . ·'. . · ' . 
~ -~ . ··•· . . . . ,_ . 
. • ·., .. · ... ·. .... . . :)~.oi,idition 
. : .. :-> :: i: >.,,·. < .. - ·-Peri,odic .q.~rly financial reports were submitted timely but because most of the -bank accounts •. , . . .·· 

·.. ' .. : · ·-· . ... ~ri~t·been reconciled until August 2016 (as noted in Findings No. 2016-001); the amount · .. 
· ... : .:-, ... , ·:_::. :' ... _ :.:; ~J>.orted in the bank accounts may or may not have been correctdue to reconciling items. . .:-: "·· . 

."': ·= •. ~· ·- . . ·• . · .. ~- . . . _, - . . h - -

;" ·. 
, · . . . ~ . . . . -·· . . . ~ ~. 

· ::.· .:.:: :· .: : _: :>\G'use ... 
. _: ;>:TJte Office·Manager performed a majority of the bank account reconcHiations after the end.of ·.:-/ 

. · · ·: .- ·::Jho fiscal year during the month of August 2016 after having a difficult period beginning in . · .. 
. ·. · .. ·.: .· :: _ .l)eeember 2015 and continuing with personaUssues concerning illness and eventual death of her 

. : : ·.··.: ··.· . .. :· >hlisband in :May 2016. The Office Manager d"id howevet, maintain a daily cash balance update 
· '.:? ·': >.· .. :·.::·: · ~: · '~~iph· was reported to the governing board. 

_: - ~ .: 

. . . . ·. . ." ~E.tte¢t 
·· · .• •' .. :· . . : . .:: : ·.- ~ -.tjaroeld Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and-Sewage .~orks Association has not complied · 

· ·· · · · "with Sections 6-6-2 and 6-6-3 NMSA 1978. The financial reports were submitted to DFA-LGD .. -·. ·•··· .· 
. . . ' : .. on' a quarterly basis but without performing the required bank reconciliations. .··.' . 

. · :: · ·· ;~ommendation 
. :·:: .· .. : -.· .... :. :- '.·:.·.:: ~· ··;. ·' ::)i:is:tecolnttiended that Garfield Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and·. S~wage .Works 

i :. '· _·,;: :· ~.:.·.: ·_.::: ._: .. _. •·· :~:~ciation make every effort to perform the reqajred monthfy bank reconciliations on all J>ank : · 
·· ~::· ./:: :·:'_:::·,.·. ~ <:< :/~~i:>unts before submitting the financial reportS oii a quarterly basiS to the Department of 

· '.: : ·· .. · .. · ·· . .-.:.:.Finance and Administration - Local Government Division (DF A-LGD). :·:.' 

.. ·· · .:_ · ... . · < · - ··J;11tjty :Response 
· .. . ·: .: '::.· · .. ·· .. :: .. >:1J:ie:Agency will actively establish an effort to perform the required month1ybank . ..·. 

: .. .. 

· ·- ·. : ·.·::: .:. ~ :_..\~onciliations on all bank accounts before submitting. the financial reports on a quarterly basis:'io·· .. _ 
. ~·::· . ·;:,··~;,<:2:tl{e :t>epariment of Finance and Administration - Local Government Division.(DFA-LGD). the . : ·: 

•· ···- · · · · ~ ' : -c;Agency will verify that the bank reconciliations are being performed timely beginning with· the 
. .. · .:J8ritiary 2017 board meeting. · 

.. · . . . ··. 

' '. :·: ;·· .. 

: ' 

. · ... . .. . 
:. :., .. : . . ·._ 

-24- .··.· .· 

·-:: 
.. . 

···. ·. : "' ,:. • . . ··.· . 
. ··· .. ·. .. . .•· . . 

.. .. 

. . 

... 
, .... 

. . : . . . . 

. ·· : .. ··. 

. .. 

. ·· . 

. ' ... 
.··· ... ·_·-· 

.. . = •• •• • 

.· .: . 
.. · . . · . .. 

:···-· .. 



. . :.· _. 

·GARFIELD MUTIJAL DOMESTIC WATER'(::ONSUMERS AND 
SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION . 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGSANIJRESPONSES 
FOR YEAR ENDED Jl1NE 30, 2016 

.:·.· _ . .. . · . . . .. · 

. . . . --

• • ~ I 

·--.... . '.···· ." . 
• i · '· 

. .- ... . 
· ; , · 

- •. · ·. : .. 
,.. .· 

; .< - :· ·. :Jki.•~till . . . ·.. . . - . -
. -:.·:·,, :_- ·~ : .;:_;,s~tion 6-10-17 NMSA 1978. NM Public MoneyAct.requiresthe local public body's.finaiici81 : · · .-- ·· ·· : · _. 

· : ..... _: : . .: .. : .->.-~ :Jus#futions provide 50% of pledged collateral on all .uninsyred 4eposits. · . -" : 
. . :. . . . .· ... .. · , . . .· _.,_. . . . . . · .. :: : .. :.>. .. .. 

\/.~:\;_»(;_·_-~·.?:":~ --;·, ___ !~:.->Y_:/~{n~.~~-o·n · · - .--- :·.-,. _ _. _-~-'-- -,:-·· -
· ~~ ....... :·.:-,.··:,;·_,. 

<_<- ~: . .>: ~.· :.:<-~ . -- .. -: .-~Th~ Fede!al Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insures up to $250,000 of.~ash deposits-~eid .~ '_:"-:~ · ·· · :-.-· - : <: '-
> :: . " · ·O':· :: :-... ·>:.~-'.~J>anking inStitution. The Agency has seven bank accounts ·~t~ells. Fargo· Bankand thetotai ~. -- . .. .. . 

: :, · .. -' .. · ._·:. cash:deposits for all accounts exceeded the $250,000 FDIC limit every month during the fiscal- - · · "·. :.:. 
'..'.· · --· ' _ -:Year_ ended-June 30, 2016. The amount exceeding the FDIC limit varied from .month to month · · .. · 

.. ;. :·.' '. _- _:: _: With-th~ smallest amount being $13,206 and the highest amount being $18,498 of uninsured · · .... 
·. :_._ > _'. : .. :-: . - ~ -. --.;~~P9sits. · . _ -· . . ~ , 

... · .... · - .," ... · ::-·: .-. ~· . ~...; :· '. .";<·· .... .I 

: -.. -;_.-_, -:::.. .:;,:/ .. ) ~·1:1-~.e . . . . 
,. _, " .. Qlliifield Mutual Domestic Water Consumers '1ld Sew~ge .Works Association m~tained cash·. 

··:• .'•. 

~ ::"-": · .;·-_ d~psits in seven checking accounts at Wells Fargo Bank.during fiscal year ended June 30,,2016"-
. · ... " · · ·.Wjth amowts that exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit and thus exposed: · ·:· .- . 

. .__: ,:>tt,e,Agency to the risk of uninsured deposits because it did not secure SO% pledged collateraL·'" · · · ·' 
· " . :.- -, ._ __ ' _: ,;.:~ni-:W:etls Fargo Bank for all uninsured deposits. 

. · .. -----· - - ·- -..~ . -

-·· <' _ . .-·: ·> . \ ... ~ : 
-:· ', -~ ... , .... ,_.:; :/~ffect . . . . ... 

'>~ .. : .:,-~ .... : ~~ld .Mutual Domestic Warer Consumers and Sewage Works Association has not compljed :· ·: ,' 
·· .. > · ~thSection 6-'l0-17 NMSA 1978 which requires the l_ocal public body's fillancial institutions..- .. 

-.... /'. ,: . ~ : ·_:.<·4~tovi0e 50% pledged collareral on all uninsured deposits exceeding FDIC. " · 
" --

.. 
. --- · __ :. -

... -.. <.;:.. '· . . _ --~ ».;;:--- ')i~o,mlJi,e?,ation . ··=./· ... . - . . · 

~:_:-- .- .. : : ._ .. -: :_. · _ .. .- . -_ :.:. ? ~.ttJs -~oninleP'~ed,.that Garfield Mutual Domestic· ,Water consWilers and Sewage Works 
· _ .. : :·: : '.' -'·'.,':-" ·.: ... ·_.-: :<;·ASB;OCiat_ion esteblish a sys~ with the :fiilancialinstitutions--that.it banks with-that will provide· 
· · · : ··· .·; ;-,: . ·.;:·'the:necessary SO% pledged coJlateral on all deposits-lb.at exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance 

.Ct)rporation (FDIC) limit which is currently $250,000. · 

·· .'.':-: , ._:- : : _<:;,EJi,t;ity'.Response 
· :·" .. · · · . ._, :_ .. · · _;;.:The:Agencywill actively seek to get Wells Fargo Bank to provide itwith·the 50% ofpledg~ 
·.:.'; .. · .. -.: ' . . .- -_ ·:-'.c91lateral on all uninsured deposits and review cash.balances held within.all financial institUtions · 
: :. ·: - · - ": . ~tOjrenfy that all deposits are insw-ed. The Agency-has begun the process with Wells Fargo Bank . 

. ·. · · ... ... .-.- _ to .establish the necessary pledged collateral and plans to have the necessary collateral by June· 
-·~: .>. ::.·,::-:_ : ... : .: . ; :30,,2017. . 

. • ~ '. ' : J .: • 

. .... .... 

·:: . · .. · 

.. ·· . 
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.. :; ..... _,. -~ -... ·., .. GARFffiLD MUTIJAL DOMESnc WATERCONSUMERS .;AND 
. ' SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIAtlON 

'. · ··.. SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES : .. · · 

.· .· ·= . .. ·.'· .. ·· FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,.··.2016 
-. > ~: -<. ~lttm<2Q16:004- .Bidding Process according.to.NM -Procnrsmezq Code 

.· .. . ··· .. :-\ <:r.J$ria · · · · · · · · · · · ·· ··. . 

.... . . : 

.. · , 

.--. .. :;:-: :>.: ·::t:. _·>~S~tion 134-28 through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978 and Statellegulations (1 .4.l NMAC)·tequii-etiia(: ~::.·: . · . ·:.: 
·.. ·· . ·-· .. : · : -: :~g'eµqies upon receipt of written notification from the office-of the State AudltQr to proceed, the : .'. .· ·- . · 

·. -~ -;a~hcy shajl identify all elements or services to be solicited pw;suant to Su~ection A of 2.2.2.10·: ·. :.... : · · ... 
· · ,.. ·,.,,.,',N.MApor Sub$ections A and B of2.2.2.16 ~C if S:pplfoable, .. :and ~ques~ qu,otatioris or ·: ...... .__. .·. '.·: . 

... -'. ·:. -·· ·.:_:_ :/;~~po$8.ls for .each applicable element of the annual audifor ·agreed upor(proeedutes engagement. :::<,:;:·> · 
· .. : ~ :---~ >- ·.::-,.:_,:.·;fii~Agency is~encouraged tQ obtain no fewer thait. thre~ written or ciral quotations to be reeordecL> . >' · ·. , · 
::__ -. -~· .. >: ~ - ~· :;~~ti~placed·"in the procurement file. The Agency shail.evaluate 811 coµipetitiv~ proposals or . · .·. · .. ·• _· .· · 

. ·.·'.: "'. . : ··_.··. ; ' ' . .-·:3ffe9.1lltions received pursuant to this Subsection,H of 2.2.2. 8 NMAC .usmg _ah evaluation-process; . : c · . . : •. . 

::· : .. ,·, · .. · -~· LP.1¢.fetably executed by a selection committee. After coippletiiig.the evaluations for eachlPA.:al'ld-.. · ··. 
- . :/ :.j:iU,ilcing,the IP A selection, each agency must enter the approwiate requested infonnation onlllie .·· . 

. . . . - . ·: . . .... · o~:;th,e OSA-Connect website. The OSA will notify the agency as to the office's approval or . . · · · .. . 
. _ ' · · ·. · · , tejection of the selected IP A and contract. · ... . ··.• ···.:.: . 

.:·. 

: .. 
<• > .. ·· :; .. ·;"> _~.(~~'ildition 

. ... : · .. . : :_.- . .. '_lii~-Agoncy did not solicit any quotations or proposal~ for the agreed upon procedure 
· ' ~ : . :. : ' : .. · _ ;~ppment ftorn any independen~ public accountant (IPA) but instead selected the IP A that fuld 

. ~ · · · _·: ... -· ... ::~ prior year agreed upon procedures and submitted the requested infonnation to the 
·. - · ·. -· ::·.:Office of the State Auditor who rejected the IP A selection because the IP A failed to meet the 

·, · · -· ... • ilictitor rotatio~ requirement and had performed Tier 6 Agreed Upon Procedures for the past .six 
· .· ·:· . . .. . . . _yfus for. the Agency. The Agency submitted a request to the state auditor for reconsideration of 

··. · -·.;· _,,, . · ._·. -th~~pproval. Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 12-6-3 and-14, and NMAC 2.2.2.8, the 
. . . . . •·· .. : .-·' .. ;.·/Office.of the State Auditor approved the request to contract the IP A. 

1 
' · · · . · · .Caue 

. -__ _,_ <: .. .. _. :_ .-.::)G.ilffield Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and Sewage Works Association did not solicit any 
·~ . : · : :·. ·: . · .. ·· .: .qli~'hltlons or proposals for the agreed upon pl'.ocedure .engagement from any independent public. 
· • .- _.. : "'. · · . :. ·- ·_. )w¢.Ountant (JP A) for the Tier 6 Agreed Upon Procedures because the deadline was missed due 

.: .· . . ·:>to.the manager dealing with personal issues concem~g the health and death of her spouse in 
. . :M4y2016. . 

... · ... 

' . - ·l;ftect 
··: -.· .. , . ·- :_ · _.;·_ ....... ·rp-~¢ld Mutual Domestic Water Consumers and Sewage Works Association has not complied 
.. . ··. - · ,- :, .'· -w.J,tlrSection 13-1-28 through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978.and State Regulations (1.4.1 NMAC) . 
. ~ ·<': .~.' 

. · · · ·.· : .. jt~mmendatfon 
· •·· ~-: '. . · ~ - ,~ .. :."Jfisrecommended that the Agency follow the required procedures to obtain professional services 

.. · ·. . . . .. from:an IPA pursuant to Subsection I of2.2.2.8 NMAC. 
_ . _ . : -_ . ·: . .-.E-..1;hf ,R.,sponse 
·. · '. ·. ·· · · · · .. ·-'.Ifie Agency agrees to follow ~e required procedures to obtain pro~sional services frpm an 
. ; _·. '. ·' , . .; ~-rn~dent Public Accountant pursuant to 2.2.2.8 (J) NMAC begillning with the next fiscal y$t · 

_·· ... , .. ·· _ ... . ' c:·::~June 30, 2017 by submitting the· IPA selection and contract using the online.OSA-
·' · · ··. · i . · · ·. ·-:. 0 .C()i)fiect website by May 31, 2017 . . ,• . . · .. -· .·: 
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. : . .GARFmLD MUTUAL.DOMESTICWATERCONSUMERS AND 
·· · SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION 

.. ·:. ;::· :·;:·:: ,:::-.- .;--!.~ ·_,· SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND:RESIDNSES 
«:._· ': ·:<. ' · · · -· FOR YEAR ENDED .JUNE 30* 2016 

. .-.. ·<. : .. _::.-... ::-.~:··:~-: .. · · . =· ···ftiiJi.:~2oJ.6-005~..:.App~ov~ .. of .B.udget · -.~ 
_.'·>· .. : '. ~>'.'::.::J:: ·;<:': : .. ~ri(~tb( . .. · . . . .. . . ····· . .· . . . . . .·. . . . ... . . ; . . 

·, .. . · 

.. ~ .: ...... 

·,.;.'.;' ... :-,: 

. ' ·~.··· .... 
··'· · 

: : ·: i.,': , ::::: O: .. :, ::. · ·: : ~-::· :\:Secti()ir6-6~2(A) NMSA, 1978 and Section. 6-6-5 .. ~SA, 1978 require that:the local public·:body: · · ·· · 
· ~'.. :. · -. · · __ ;. ~~: ·.·)~~fuish ~d file with the Department of Finance and Achniilistration-.Lo,cal Governm:ent , .. :·. · ·. .' · 
.. : · - .-·: .. ".:,_.~_::J)jVis-ion (DFA-LGD) a proposed budget by June 1..The amtµBl.hUdset .submitte4-to the ·D~A-'. > · ·: · .. '··.". 

,·:))·:(:-:.<.~_//.>-:' :.:.{ :LGJ?.:m,ust be ·l!P.prpyed· by the DFA-LGD. Upon r~eipt of any bu<lgetis.PProY:ed byDf. A·!PD/ . : .. =~·: .:: __ <'. .. . _:_.__,.>,·.~.-. ·_:~_ .. 
·"" : ·:..::.:>\·", :"..:_:. :'. . . : · ~ · jhd~ p~blfo.\>ody sluill cause such bµdget .to·: be JIUll(ie .a .part .of tne niinutes :0f~ch bpdy ... ~is''>- · .· :· _ .. : ·· . , .. ·: ....... 

· · ·· .. ,. ,;_:· ;."' - ,. )~dgeishOuld_be monitored, reviewed iin.d adjusted in the-nonnal.course ofUle·fiscal year ,bytlie .. ,: ·: ·:_. ·_ >·. -· · · 
· ,.~oarci ofOirectorsand any adjustments due to variances shoyld be apptoved:byDFA-LGD. · . . 

··' _,,:·:·-. .. ,?: .. ~_(;ondition .. .. , _. , 
. ... ,.• · ... ·· .... 

. . . . . .· ~ . · · · <:-;.: ... _1'h(p~oposed 'bJidget for fiscal year June 30, 2016 .was notsubinitted to DF A'.l:LGD-by·1un~-' 1 -:~t .> 
• ::!_:i0.~~ s~bS¢guently ~ubmitted and approved by DFA-LGD however~.opce apprQved,Jl:te focal . . _ · .. -· •· · · :_ : ....... _ 

, _ .. ·-" /:'-.·· __ .. ~ ~':o;;;'.~~µc'bOd,y cifd not include !11e approved budg~t 8$p~ ofthe,min~s of!fe board. _The . ., _ , . :_:: ·< .. /· ... 
. · _. - · .. .. · . '.,. . · :.' ~l;fuil~~~ ~process of managmg the revenues,--expenditutes, and non-operating revenue and ·:. . ·. · . _, 
· · . .-: ._ .... : · · "··~penses,_which should be compared to the approved budget so that the Agencycanmoniti>rits . ·.: ... . 

. . . ' . ' . ~ .... 

·: <' . -.... : .. :: :'-· ... :· ·:. )'~~gre$S. ·. .. .. . <:· 
:-·... .:. · .. . ' '.' " ··· 

.. , .• / J;<.·'..: .... :.)_~~~~e . . . . .. 
.-· /-~".' :'- >-::<The Agency did n,ot meet the deadline for submitting theptoposed budget to the;Departrnent.of: . : . ·:· ...... 

· · .. :=;/~ance:aD.d AdminlStration - Local Govermnen~ Division (DFA·LGD} and after receipt of.the 
. /'. ,t jiptitipation <>f approval .of the budget from DF A .. LGD, Jailed~to _include;~e a:pprpv~ .budget-:as . 
·:·: :: <; '.paiiJ':of,~e minutes. The Agency is not reviewing any variances from bu(lget;to actual revenlie · · · 

._..:_ _:::, : ::1in4·,expeitses anp should make adjustments for !lnY unfavorable variances. · 

.... . -
• _, · : . . r 

.....:. ... . • ~ ·.· . . .. : . . .... · .. 
.. ; . ' ·.•·· 

.. · <·/ :·> <: Etftct . :· ·.· 
· Jc-:.( . :/_·;:.-/Q~~ld}4utu4f_Domestic Water Consumers and· Sewage Works Association ·b:asnot compliec;t :'~/::~;' :· ..... .. ..,-: .:.; .. /.-> 
· <<.-:_.:~· .. :_>.:~·-w#J;i·S~tioris .6-:6.:2(A).and 6-6--S NMSA, 1918.:·thc ,prrii)osed.budget was :noOtibmitted .~f~. :: :: /=· . ._r·_.-'· =·· ... ·:· ... ~_:.--.-

·. · : ;_.: : :,:: ·;-~'¢.iiue ,d1tte-ofJ1ine 1 and upon receipt of the approval from·,the .])c,partmentofFmance and ·: . .. _.:.- .--·::.: : .:: : 
.. . . >:~·'.-/.:~{iiisttation . ;: Local GovCI'lllllent Division·(DFA-LGO) ~ notincludcd..aspartofthe . ::<-- ··. . ... .... _ 

.::. ·:0:=·:: . .-•,; ljljijut~s of the focal public body. The Agency is not revjewing•any varianc¢s:fromcomparing ·: .. · .. · . .;.:· · 
· · ·:.: : . ·>i·"-:~4~0to'actual revenue and exp_enses during the fiscal. year. · · · · .: :: 

-.~ .: '.:._::Recommendation · · 
. . ~· .. 
··· .. ; . . · :· '. ... : . : .· : -; -~ -:~:ltj~~tec~nu;~~ed that the Agency make an-effort to meet.the June ·-1. deadlin~-in submitting.the _". . .. 

>":,:.-·~·:_:.'.> .. :« :·:= ·~po:s~d«b..u4get toDFA-LGD and upon receipt .ofthe .autlmrizationformDFA-LGD, .incllldeJh~ - -·:: .. > . _ . , 
.. -·. ;·: .. -.-?. \: · ;~: -... ~c_;~ppr.(>ved bu~get .in the board minutes. It is al:S_o.recommended 1bat the Agency review on a .· · · · '.· :. ' · .:, : .· .. ·. · - · ~-~.:. 
· :; .,·,-;:-,:<·:; :··; - :· Jno~tlily basist if possible, the variances in budgei.comparedto. actUaltevcnue and expens,es~~ · . . :: ', .·· .> .,. '· · ·. · 

'· '<:::; ... >: .:./<:',.:. :_{,:£ .. tit)' :R~sppnse · · . · ·. · . , .:'._:. · .:. . ... ·.. . . 
. / .. ; .: ,:,_,:·{.;_ -.·.:'.'. :;; iJ::-:. :_;1)~:-..\gc:mcy will make an effort to submit the proposed .budget:to -~ PEA·LGD by JU.ne · 1 t 2oi 1' :_. · .. ·. · >.: · · . . ·: ·· ·,"; ... 

:::::: .:)::":i.(;>~ · ·~ ... :,: '. · >~:,::.llP.~·:iJi·ciu<te as part of the minutes once tlie appri>val·~as·:b~~-'R.CeivecLby DP A"LGD for bud_get· .<· ·. : .. ·. :. · · · · . :· · .. 
.. ·-. ·~ .:=: .:-. -- :~' <>:. ·< Y•--201112018. The Agency will actively review anyvarianees from buc;lget compared to ·acttim>:; ·: '. . _._. · .. -

·--:":,"._. - -~::)> ·~::::<~:- -_)iW:eiiue and expenses during its scheduled board minutes-®ginning Janua:rY ~011 for fiscal-year-·:.. · · · · ._· ···:. , : ... · .. , ... -·· _: . .-: f.> ':;.2(Jl~/2017. ·. . . ' .. '. < • 

. .. .. . . : ~·. ~! · . . . ·; . ~..... . . 
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GARFIELD MUI1JAL DOMESTIC WATER CONSUMERS 
AND SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION 

ENTRANCE CONFERENCE 
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

An entrance conference was held on September 13, 2016 at 7:00 pm at the office of Garfield 
Mutual Domestic Water Consumers Association at 8580 N. Hwy 187, Garfield, NM 87936 
which was a closed session Three members of the Six members of the governing board in 
attendance were: 

Ronald Garay 
Nga Brewster 
Isidro Alvarez 

President 
Secretary- Treasurer (Non voting) 
Director 
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GARFIELD MUTUAL DOMESTIC WATER CONSUMERS 
AND SEWAGE WORKS ASSOCIATION 

EXIT CONFERENCE 
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

An exit conference was held on November 15, 2016 at 7:00 pm at the office of Garfield Mutual 
Domestic Water Consumers Association at 8580 N. Hwy 187, Garfield, NM 87936 which was a 
elosed session. S members of the governing board in attendance were: 

Ronald Garay 
Nga Brewster 
Robert Shannon 
.Isidro Alvarez 
' Robert Shannon 

President 
Secretary - Treasurer (non voting) 
Director 
Director 
Director 
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